

Russian General Officer Guide

May 11, 2022 Edition

By Mason Clark, Karolina Hird, and Kateryna Stepanenko

Contents

Introduction	6
Acronyms	6
Russian General Officer Ranks	7
Russian General Staff	8
Chief of General Staff: Army General Valery Vasilyevich Gerasimov	8
First Deputy Chief of General Staff: Colonel General Nikolai Vasilyevich Bogdanovsky	8
Chief of the Main Operational Directorate of the General Staff: Colonel General Serge Fyodorovich Rudskoy	•
Ground Forces of the Russian Federation	9
Commander-in-Chief of Russian Ground Forces: Army General Oleg Leonidovich Salyul	коу9
First Deputy Commander-in-Chief of Russian Ground Forces: Colonel General Vasily Tonkoshkurov	
Deputy Commander-in-Chief of Russian Ground Forces: Lieutenant General Alexander Anatolyevich Matovnikov	
Western Military District	10
District-level Officers10	
Commander of the Western Military District: Colonel General Alexander Alexandrovich Zhuravlyov	
Chief of Staff of the Western Military District: Lieutenant General Alexey Vladimirovich	Zavizion 10
Deputy Commander of the Western Military District: Lieutenant General Vladimir Ana Kochetkov	
Army-level Officers11	
1st Guards Tank Army11	
Commander of the 1st Guards Tank Army: Lieutenant General Sergey Alexandrovich Kise	el11
Chief of Staff of the 1st Guards Tank Army: Colonel Ivan Mikhailovich Shkanov	11
Deputy Commander of the 1st Guards Tank Army: Unknown	11
6th Combined Arms Army	
Commander of the 6th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Vladislav Nikolayevic	
Chief of Staff of the 6th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	11
Deputy Commander of the 6th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	11
20th Guards Combined Arms Army12	
Commander of the 20th Guards Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Andrey Ser Ivanaev	_
Chief of Staff of the 20th Combined Arms Army: Major General Andrey Yuryevich Pyata	ev 12

Deputy Commander of the 20th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	12
Navy-level Officers	12
Baltic Sea Fleet	12
Commander of the Baltic Sea Fleet: Vice Admiral Victor Nikolaevich Liina	12
Chief of Staff of the Baltic Sea Fleet: Vice Admiral Sergey Vladimirovich Lipilin	12
Deputy Commander of the Baltic Fleet: Vice Admiral Sergei Stanislavovich Elised	ev13
Southern Military District	13
District-level Officers	13
Commander of the Southern Military District: Army General Aleksandr Vladim	
Chief of Staff of the Southern Military District: Colonel General Sergey Yurevick	
Deputy Commander of the Southern Military District: Lieutenant General Alex Avdeev	• •
Army-level Officers	14
58th Combined Arms Army	14
Commander of the 58th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Mikhail Ste	epanovich Zusko 14
Chief of Staff of the 58th Combined Arms Army: Major General Vyacheslav Nik	olaevich Gurov14
Deputy Commander of the 58th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	14
49th Combined Arms Army	14
Commander of the 49th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Yakov Vlad Rezantsev	
Chief of Staff of the 49th Combined Arms Army: Major General Valery Plohotny	yuk14
Deputy Commander of the 49th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	15
8th Combined Arms Army	15
Commander of the 8th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Andrey Niko	*
Chief of Staff of the 8th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	15
Deputy Commander of the 8th Combined Arms Army: Major General Vladimin	r Petrovich Frolov15
22nd Army Corps	15
Commander of the 22nd Army Corps: Major General Arkady Marzoev	15
Chief of Staff of the 22nd Army Corps: Unknown	15
Deputy Commander of the 22nd Army Corps: Unknown	15
Navy-level Officers	16
Russian Black Sea Fleet	16
Commander-in-Chief of the Black Sea Fleet: Admiral Igor Vladimirovich Osipov	716
Chief of Staff of the Black Sea Fleet: Vice Admiral Sergey Mihailovich Pinchuk	16

Nikolayevich Paly	16
Eastern Military District	17
District-level Officers17	
Commander of the Eastern Military District: Colonel General Aleksandr Yuryevich Chaiko	17
Chief of Staff of the Eastern Military District: Lieutenant General Evgeny Valerivich Nikiforov	17
Deputy Commander of the Eastern Military District: Lieutenant General Mikhail Yakovlevich Nosulev	17
Army-level Officers	
5th Combined Arms Army	
Commander of the 5th Combined Arms Army: Major General Alexei Vladimirovich Podilov	18
Chief of Staff of the 5th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	18
Deputy Commander of the 5th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	18
29th Combined Arms Army18	
Commander of the 29th Combined Arms Army: Major General Andrey Borisovich Kolesnikov	18
Chief of Staff of the 29th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	18
Deputy Commander of the 29th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	18
35th Combined Arms Army	
Commander of the 35th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Alexander Semyonovich Sanchik	18
Chief of Staff of the 35th Combined Arms Army: Major General Sergey Ilyich Nyrkov	18
Deputy Commander of the 35th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	19
36th Combined Arms Army19	
Commander of the 36th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Valery Nikolayevich Solodo	
Chief of Staff of the 36th Combined Arms Army: Major General Andrey Anatoliyevich Seritsky.	19
Deputy Commander of the 36th Combined Arms Army: Unknown	19
68th Army Corps	
Commander of the 68th Army Corps: Lieutenant General Dmitry Valerievich Glushenkov	19
Chief of Staff of the 68th Army Corps: Major General Vladimir Anatoliyevich Belyavsky	
Deputy Commander of the 68th Army Corps: Unknown	19
Navy-level Officers	
Pacific Fleet	
Commander of the Pacific Fleet: Admiral Sergei Iosifovich Avakyants	20
Chief of Staff of the Pacific Fleet: Vice Admiral Sergey Grigoryevich Rekish	20
Deputy Commander of the Pacific Fleet: Vice Admiral Denis Valentinovich Berezovsky	
Central Military District	20

District-level Officers	20
Commander of the Central Military District: Colonel General Aleksandr Pavlovic	h Lapin20
Chief of Staff of the Central Military District: Colonel General Mikhail Yuryevich	Teplinskiy21
Deputy Commander of the Central Military District: Lieutenant General Yevger Poplavsky	•
Deputy Commander for Military-Political Work: Major General Rustam Sakhibi Minnekaev	
Army-level Officers	21
2nd Guards Combined Arms Army	21
Commander of the 2nd Guards Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General And Kolotovkin	
Chief of Staff of the 2nd Guards Combined Arms Army: Unknown	21
Deputy Commander of the 2nd Guards Combined Arms Army: Unknown	21
41st Combined Arms Army	22
Commander of the 41st Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Sergey Boris	ovich Ryzhkov 22
Chief of Staff of the 41st Combined Arms Army: Major General Vitaly Petrovich	Gerasimov22
Deputy Commander of the 41st Combined Arms Army: Major General Andrey Asuhovetskiy	
Russian Airborne Forces (VDV)	22
Commander of the Russian Airborne Forces: Colonel-General Andrey Nikolaevic	ch Serdyukov22
Chief of Staff of the Russian Airborne Forces: Colonel-General Evgeny Alekseevi	ch Ustinov23
Deputy Commander of the Russian Airborne Forces: Major General Anatoly Ge Kontsevoi	O
Russian Aerospace Forces	23
Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Army General Sergei Vladimirovich Surovik	xin23
Chief of Staff of the Aerospace Forces: Lieutenant General Viktor Musavirovich A	fzalov24
Deputy Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Colonel General Andrey Vyachesla	vovich Yudin 24
Deputy Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Commander of the Air Force: General Sergey Vladimirovich Dronov	
Deputy Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Commander of the Air and Mir Forces: Lieutenant General Andrey Gennadievich Demin	
Deputy Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Commander of the Space Force General Aleksandr Valentinovich Golovko	

Introduction

This is a guide to the current command structure of the Russian Armed Forces at the General Staff, Military District, and Army/Corps levels. It includes key officers in the Russian General Staff and identifies the commander, chief of staff, and deputy commander for Russia's four main military districts and their subordinate army and corps-level formations. The current officers occupying each of those roles are included, as well as their biography and verifiable career history.

This document is not exhaustive, and ISW will update it over time—both to fill information gaps and to expand its coverage to other key structures in the Russian military. This document was assembled using entirely open sources. We have confirmed all of the information herein to the best of our abilities, though there are necessarily gaps—including both unknown officers at different command positions as well as gaps in the biographies of individual officers. We will periodically update this document as new information becomes available and when the occupants of the currently included positions change. We will also expand this document over time to cover other echelons and components of the Russian military. As of now, this document notably does not include Russia's Northern Military District (previously known as the Northern Fleet), officers at the division echelon and below, the heads of the Russian military's various Directorates, and branch chiefs.

We intend this publication as a resource for the military, government, and other researchers. This guide does not include analysis of the implications of Russian career paths, the skills of individual officers, or forecasts of changes in the Russian command structure. We offer it as a resource to policymakers, military researchers, the media, and other NGOs both as a reference and ideally as a springboard for future research – such as identifying the officers responsible for Russian atrocities in Ukraine. We welcome suggestions on use cases or further improvements. We intend to produce updated editions in the future.

Acronyms

CAA- Combined Arms Army

WMD- Western Military District

EMD- Eastern Military District

SMD- Southern Military District

CMD- Central Military District

LNR- Luhansk People's Republic

DNR- Donetsk People's Republic

CSTO- Collective Security Treaty Organization

GUR- Ukraine's Main Intelligent Directorate

KIA- Killed in Action



Russian General Officer Ranks

Russian general officer ranks do not align with their US equivalents. Brief notes on each rank and their US equivalents are as follows:

Marshall of the Russian Federation is equivalent to a US five-star general of the Army

• No Russian officers currently hold this rank, and the only post-Soviet officer to hold this rank was Minister of Defense Igor Sergeyev from 1997 to 2006.

Army general/general of the army is equivalent to a US four-star general

- Defense Minister Shoigu, Chief of the General Staff Gerasimov, and Gerasimov's two most-likely successors—SMD Commander Dovrnikov and Aerospace Forces Commander in Chief Surovikin—hold this rank.
- The title of "army general" is not connected to the ground forces, as evidenced by Aerospace Forces Commander in Chief Surovikin.

Colonel general is equivalent to a US three-star lieutenant general

• Military district commanders and more-experienced army commanders typically hold this rank.

Lieutenant general is equivalent to a US two-star major general

• Army commanders and chiefs of staff (typically under colonel generals) typically hold this rank.

Major general is equivalent to a US one-star brigadier general

• Army chiefs of staff and division commanders typically hold this rank.

Russian General Staff

Chief of General Staff: Army General Valery Vasilyevich Gerasimov

Gerasimov graduated from the Kazan Suvorov Military School in 1973.¹ Gerasimov then graduated from the Kazan Higher Tank Command School in 1977. From 1977 to 1982, Gerasimov served as a platoon commander, company commander, and battalion chief of staff in the 80th Tank Regiment of the 90th Guards Tank Division of the Northern Group of [Soviet] Forces in Poland. From 1982 to 1984, Gerasimov served as the chief of staff and then commander of an unspecified battalion in the 29th Motorized Rifle Division of the 5th CAA. He then graduated from the Malinovsky Military Armored Forces Academy in 1987.² Gerasimov served as chief of staff of an unspecified tank regiment from 1987 to 1993. Gerasimov then commanded the 144th Guards Motorized Rifle Division of the 20th Guards Army in Talin, Estonia, from 1993 to 1995.

From 1995 to 1997, Gerasimov attended Russia's Military Academy of the General Staff.³ He then served as first deputy commander of the 1st Guards Tank Army in the Moscow Military District from 1997 to 1998. Gerasimov served in the 58th CAA of the North Caucasus Military District from 1998 to 2003, including as deputy commander in 1998, chief of staff in 1999, and overall commander of the army in 2001. During his time in in the 58th CAA, he oversaw operations in the Second Chechen War. Gerasimov served as chief of staff of the Far Eastern Military District from 2003 to 2005, where he was reprimanded for mass illness outbreaks among conscripts.⁴ From April 2006 to December 2006, Gerasimov headed the Main Directorate of Combat Training and Service of the Russian Armed Forces and then served as chief of staff of the North Caucasus Military District from December 2006 to December 2007. ⁵ Gerasimov was promoted to Military District command in 2007, commanding the Leningrad Military District from 2007 to 2009 and the Moscow Military District from 2009 to 2010. Gerasimov served as deputy chief of the general staff of the Russian Armed Forces from 2010 to 2012. Gerasimov then briefly commanded the Central Military District from April 2012 to November 2012. Putin appointed Gerasimov chief of the general staff in November 2012, the position he has held ever since.

First Deputy Chief of General Staff: Colonel General Nikolai Vasilyevich Bogdanovsky

Bogdanovksy began his career stationed in Hungary from 1978 to 1987 as a reconnaissance platoon commander, company commander, chief of staff of a motorized rifle battalion, and commander of a motorized rifle tank battalion.⁶ From 1987 to 1994, he served as chief of staff of a fortified area, commander of a motorized rifle regiment, and chief of staff of a motorized rifle division. In 1996, he was appointed head of the 392nd Pacific Center for the Training of Junior Specialists of Motorized Rifle Troops. He served as chief of staff and then commander of the 35th CAA from 1996 to 2006. From 2006 to 2008, Bogdanovsky served as deputy commander of the Far Eastern Military District. From 2008 to 2009, he served as first deputy commander-in-chief of the Ground Forces.⁷ Bogdanovsky commanded the Leningrad Military District from 2009 to 2011. In 2011, he was appointed head of the Main Directorate of Combat Training of Ground Forces.⁸ Bogdanovsky commanded the Central Military District from December 2012 to June 2014 and was appointed the first deputy chief of the General Staff in 2014.⁹ Bogdanovsky reportedly participated in negotiation efforts with the Israeli Defense Forces during Russia's operation in Syria.¹⁰

Chief of the Main Operational Directorate of the General Staff: Colonel General Sergey Fyodorovich Rudskoy

Rudskoy graduated from the Minsk Suvorov Military School in 1977. In ISW cannot verify his specific assignments from 1977 to 1995, though he likely moved through the standard promotion path of Soviet/Russian Motor Rifle officers. Rudskoy participated in both the First Chechen War from 1994 to 1996 and the Second Chechen War from 1999 to 2009. Rudskoy commanded the 255th Guards Motorized Rifle Regiment of the 20th Guards Motor Rifle Division in 1995, but his other assignments are unknown. His exact activities between the Chechen

campaigns and 2015 are also unknown. In 2012 he was awarded the rank of lieutenant general. Rudskoy was appointed head of the Main Operational Directorate of the General Staff on November 24, 2015, and reportedly took part in the Russian military operation in Syria in an unspecified role in 2015. Rudskoy has become the Russian Ministry of Defense's main spokesperson throughout the 2022 invasion of Ukraine, releasing daily video briefings on the Kremlin's framing of the war.

Ground Forces of the Russian Federation

Commander-in-Chief of Russian Ground Forces: Army General Oleg Leonidovich Salyukov

Salyukov began his career moving up the ranks (platoon commander, company commander, battalion chief of staff, and battalion commander) in the Kyiv Military District of the Soviet Union from 1977 to 1982. From 1985 to 1994, Salyukov served as deputy commander of an unspecified training tank regiment, commander of an unspecified tank regiment, and finally deputy commander of the 4th Guards Tank Kantemirovskaya Division of the Moscow Military District, though the exact dates are unknown for these three positions. Salyukov graduated from the Military Academy of the General Staff in 1996. From 1997 to 1998, Salyukov commanded the 121st Motorized Rifle Division commanded the 81st Motorized Rifle Division from 1998 to 2000. He then served as chief of staff of the 35th CAA from 2000 to 2003 and chief of staff of the Far Eastern Military District from 2005 to 2008. Salyukov then commanded the Far Eastern Military District from 2008 to 2010—an unusual change, as Russian officers typically change military districts when moving from chief of staff to Commander. President Medvedev appointed him deputy chief of the Russian General Staff in 2010. Putin appointed Salyukov commander-in-chief of the Russian Ground Forces in 2014.

First Deputy Commander-in-Chief of Russian Ground Forces: Colonel General Vasily Petrovich Tonkoshkurov

Tonkoshkurov began his career as a platoon commander in an unknown unit of the Group of Soviet Forces in Germany and then served as company and deputy battalion commander of the 371st Guards Motorized Rifle Regiment from 1983 to 1985. He took part in the Soviet action in Afghanistan with an unknown unit, where he was wounded. After graduating from the Mikhail Frunze Military Academy in 1990, he served as commander of an unspecified motorized rifle regiment and deputy commander of an unspecified guards motorized rifle division in the Far Eastern Military District. His specific assignments between 1990 and 2004 are unknown. Tonkoshkurov participated in Russian operations in Chechnya from February 2000 to July 2000 with an unknown unit. He commanded the 19th separate motorized rifle division of the North Caucasus Military District from 2004 to 2008. Tonkoshkurov became first deputy commander of the 41st CAA of the Siberian Military District in 2008. He then went on to serve as commander of the 41st CAA from 2009 to 2013 and received the title of lieutenant general in 2013. Tonkoshkurov then served as chief of the Main Organizational and Mobilization Directorate of the Russian General Staff from 2013 to 2018. He was awarded the rank of colonel general in 2015 and has been the first deputy commander-in-chief of Russian Ground Forces since May 16, 2018.

Deputy Commander-in-Chief of Russian Ground Forces: Lieutenant General Alexander Anatolyevich Matovnikov

Matovnikov is the son of a former KGB deputy Directorate head.¹⁵ Matovnikov entered service in the antiterrorist unit "A" of the KGB (now special unit "Alpha" of the FSB) in 1986. He took part in operations in northern Afghanistan from 1986 to 1987. He took part in security operations for political events in 1987 and 1988, including a trip to the US with Soviet General Secretary Mikhail Gorbachev and providing security for UK Prime Minister Margaret Thatcher when she visited Armenia in 1988. He additionally took part in several operations in the North Caucasus, Chechnya, and North Ossetia. Matovnikov reportedly served over 30 years in unit "A," including rising to deputy commander in 2007. He transferred to the Russian Ministry of Defense in 2014 and was appointed as deputy commander of the Special Operations Forces. From 2015 to 2018, Matovnikov commanded various special operations, including unspecified operations in Syria. In 2018, he was appointed to the position of plenipotentiary representative of the president of the Russian Federation in the North Caucasus Federal District and became a member of the Russian Security Council. Putin appointed Matovnikov deputy commander-in-chief of the Ground Forces in 2020.

Western Military District

District-level Officers

Commander of the Western Military District: Colonel General Alexander Alexandrovich Zhuravlyov

Zhuravlyov joined the Soviet Army upon completion of secondary school in 1982 and graduated from the Chelyabinsk Higher Tank Command School in 1986. In Interview 1986 to 1991 and commander of the 15th Guards Mozyr Tank Division in Czechoslovakia from 1986 to 1991 and commanded an unspecified "high readiness" formation of the 21st Guards Motorized Rifle Division in Belogorsk in the mid-2000s. His other postings in the 1990s are unknown. Zhuravlyov graduated from the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff and became Chief of Staff of the 58th CAA in 2008 and took part in Russian operations in Georgia the same year. From 2010 to 2015, Zhuravlyov commanded the 2nd Red Banner CAA and then became deputy commander of the CMD in 2015. He served as the first chief of staff of Russian forces in Syria from September 2015 to July 2016 before taking over as commander of Russian Forces in Syria from Aleksandr Dvornikov from July 2016 to December 2016. Thuravlyov became deputy chief of the Russian General Staff in 2017 and then commander of the EMD later that year, during which time he returned to command Russian forces in Syria for a second tour from December 2017 to September 2018. In November 2018, he was appointed to the position of commander of the WMD.

Chief of Staff of the Western Military District: Lieutenant General Alexey Vladimirovich Zavizion

Zavizion worked his way from platoon commander to regimental chief of staff in the Trans-Baikal Military District from 1986 to 1997. He then served as chief of staff and then commander of an unspecified motor rifle regiment in the 2nd Guards Motor Rifle Division from 1997 to 2001. He commanded the 15th Shavlinsky Guards Motorized Rifle Regiment in the Second Chechen War for 7 months from 2000 to 2001. From an unspecified date (likely in 2001) to 2006, Zavizion was chief of staff of the 4th Guards Tank Division of the 20th Army of the Moscow Military District. From 2006 to 2009, he commanded the 201st Military Base in Tajikistan. In June of 2009, Zavizion entered the Military Academy of the General Staff. After his graduation, Zavizion took command of the 136th Separate Motorized Rifle Brigade. He served in this capacity until 2014, when he became the Chief of Staff of the 41st CAA. Po

The Security Service of Ukraine (SBU) reports that Zavizion oversaw Russian military operations in Donbas in 2015. ²¹ Zavizion reportedly commanded the First Army Corps (the Donetsk People's Republic's Armed Forces) of the SMD in 2015 under the pseudonym Alexei Vladimirovich Pivelin in Donbas. ²² Zavizion was also reportedly the deputy commander for the border territories in Khmeimim airbase, Syria, in 2016. ²³ Zavizion rose to commander of the 41st CAA of the CMD from 2016 to 2018. It is unclear if he retained his role as chief of staff of the 41st CAA during his deployments to Ukraine and Syria. Zavizon became deputy commander of the WMD in November 2018 before taking on his current position of chief of staff of the WMD in February 2019.

Deputy Commander of the Western Military District: Lieutenant General Vladimir Anatoliyevich Kochetkov

Kochetkov entered military service upon his graduation from the Novosibirsk Higher Military-Political Combined Arms School in 1988. ²⁴ Between 1988 and 1999, Kochetkov served in an unspecified capacity with the 242nd Training Center for Junior Specialists of the Airborne Forces, as well as other unconfirmed positions. Kochetkov graduated from the Combined Arms Academy in 1999 and became deputy commander of the same 242nd Training Center he previously served in. He additionally served as deputy commander of the 51st Airborne Regiment for an unspecified time between 1999 and 2003. Kochetkov served as commander of the 104th Airborne Assault Regiment of the 76th Airborne Assault Division from 2003 to 2005. Kochetkov commanded the 31st Separate Guards Airborne Brigade from 2005 to 2007 and participated in Russian operations during the Second Chechen War. ²⁵ He commanded the 7th Guards Air Assault Mountain Division from 2007 to 2010, during which time he participated in the Russo-Georgian War. ²⁶ Kochetkov became the temporary commander of the

106th Guards Airborne Division in 2010 before his formal appointment from 2011 to 2013.²⁷ Kochetkov then served as deputy commander of Russian Airborne troops from 2015 to 2020.²⁸ He became deputy commander of the WMD in 2020.

Army-level Officers

1st Guards Tank Army

Commander of the 1st Guards Tank Army: Lieutenant General Sergey Alexandrovich Kisel [POSSIBLY REMOVED AS OF MARCH 25]

Kisel entered military service in 1990 after graduating from the Tashkent Higher Tank Command School.²⁹ He began his career commanding an unspecified tank platoon and held various unspecified command positions from 1990 to 2009. Russian media reported Kisel gained combat experience in the First and Second Chechen Wars and the 2008 Russo-Georgian war during service in these unspecified units.³⁰ Kisel served as commander of the 19th Separate Motorized Rifle Regiment beginning in 2010 and entered the Kutuzov Academy of the Russian General Staff at an unspecified date. After graduating, Kisel became chief of staff of the 20th Guards Combined Arms Army. Kisel took command of the 1st Guards Tank Army in April 2018 and stayed in this position through the Russian invasion of Ukraine on February 24.³¹ The Ukrainian GUR reported on April 18 that Kisel was fired on March 25 for his "indecisiveness and cowardliness" when commanding Russian units in Sumy and Kharkiv oblasts in Ukraine, though ISW cannot independently verify this report or who may have succeeded Kisel as commander of the 1st Guards Tank Army.³²

Chief of Staff of the 1st Guards Tank Army: Colonel Ivan Mikhailovich Shkanov

Shakanov rose from the rank of platoon commander to division chief of staff while serving in combat units of the 2nd Guards Motor Rifle Divisions and 4th Guards Tank Division for unspecified dates in the 2000s.³³ Shakanov became chief of staff of the 1st Guards Tank Army on December 5, 2021.³⁴ The remainder of Shakanov's career is not well-documented and available sourcing is limited.

Deputy Commander of the 1st Guards Tank Army: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

6th Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 6th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Vladislav Nikolayevich Yershov

[POSSIBLY REMOVED AS OF APRIL 22]

Yershov entered military service in 1992 after graduating from the Moscow Suvorov Military School and likely pursued the standard promotion path for Russian Motorized Rifle officers in the 1990s.³⁵ Yershov graduated from the Combined Arms Academy of the Russian Armed Forces in 2003 and the General Staff Military Academy in 2012. Yershov's activities between those two graduations are not publicly documented. Yershov commanded the 21st Separate Guards Motorized Rifle Brigade in Totskoye in Orenburg Oblast from 2012 to 2014, lectured at the Russian Military Academy of the General Staff from 2014 to 2017, and served as chief of staff of the 49th CAA from 2017 to 2019.³⁶ Yershov took command of the 6th CAA in February 2019 and remains in this position as of publication.³⁷ Ukrainian sources reported that Yershov was dismissed and placed under house arrest on March 22, 2022, due to losses suffered by the 6th CAA during the invasion of Ukraine; the Ukrainian GUR reported on April 22 that Yershov had been removed from his post, but ISW cannot independently confirm these reports.³⁸

Chief of Staff of the 6th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current Chief of Staff is not publicly available.

Deputy Commander of the 6th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current Deputy Commander is not publicly available.

20th Guards Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 20th Guards Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Andrey Sergeevich Ivanaev

Ivanaev entered military service in 1992 upon his graduation from the Chelyabinsk Higher Tank Command School.³⁹ Ivanaev began his career as a tank platoon commander in the 409th Motorized Rifle Regiment (part of the Group of Russian Forces in Transcaucasia) and commanded the 27th Separate Motorized Rifle Brigade for an unspecified period, and likely rose through the standard Russian promotion path in the 1990s and early 2000s. Ivanaev became deputy commander of the 1st Guards Motorized Rifle Regiment after graduating from the Combined Arms Academy on an unknown date prior to 2006 and commanded this regiment from 2006 to 2008. Ivanaev then served as deputy commander of the 2nd Guards Motorized Rifle Division (the parent unit of the 1st Guards Motor Rifle Regiment) from 2008 to 2009. He was promoted to major general in 2011. Ivanaev commanded the 205th Separate Motorized Rifle Brigade from 2011 to 2012 and the 392th District Training Center from 2013 2014.⁴⁰ Ivanaev served as the deputy commander of the 36th CAA from 2015 to 2017. Ivanaev commanded the "Euphrates group," an unspecified structure within the Russian deployment to Syria, in 2017. Ivanaev took command of the 20th Guards CAA in 2018.

Chief of Staff of the 20th Combined Arms Army: Major General Andrey Yuryevich Pyataev

Pyataev graduated from the St. Petersburg Higher Combined Arms School in 1997 and went through a likely standard career progression, including commanding the 2nd Guards Motor Rifle Division at an unspecified time.⁴¹ He graduated from the Russian Combined Arms Academy in 2009 and the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff in 2020; he was awarded the rank of major general in December of 2021, at which time he was serving in his current position as chief of staff of the 20th CAA, though ISW cannot confirm when he assumed this position.⁴²

Deputy Commander of the 20th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

Navy-level Officers

Baltic Sea Fleet

Commander of the Baltic Sea Fleet: Vice Admiral Victor Nikolaevich Liina

Liina graduated from the Leningrad Higher Naval School in 1990.⁴³ After graduation, he worked as an engineer on a submarine in the Northern Fleet, moving up to a navigation engineer by 1999. Liina commanded a nuclear submarine missile cruiser from the 11th submarine division of the Northern Fleet from 1999 to 2004. He continued to rise through the ranks of the Northern Fleet from 2006 to 2010, serving for unspecified dates as chief of staff, then commander of a submarine division, and eventually deputy commander of the Northern Fleet's submarine forces. In 2010, he took command of the White Sea Naval Base in Severodvinsk and was promoted to vice admiral in 2012. Liina was the commander of the Kamchatka Military Flotilla from 2012 to 2014.⁴⁴ After graduating from the Military Academy of Russian General Staff in 2016, he became first deputy commander of the Black Sea Fleet from 2016 to 2019. Liina was appointed deputy chief of the General Staff in August 2019. In this capacity, he notably oversaw combat readiness exercises and strategic staff and command exercises of the Black Sea Fleet during the Kavkaz-2020 exercise. Ukrainian reports claim that Liina participated in the Kerch Strait incident in November 2018 and that the Kremlin blamed Liina for disorganized interactions between the Navy and the border service in 2018.⁴⁵ Liina took command of the Baltic Fleet in 2021.

Chief of Staff of the Baltic Sea Fleet: Vice Admiral Sergey Vladimirovich Lipilin

Lipilin graduated from the Pacific Higher Naval School and began his naval career in 1987.⁴⁶ He served in the 173rd Missile Ship Brigade of the Pacific Fleet for an unspecified period, and his other early positions are unknown. In the 1990s, Lipilin served as senior assistant commander on the *Chevronka Ukraine* missile cruiser, which was transferred to the 36th Division of the Primorsky Flotilla of the Pacific Fleet. He served in a variety of leadership positions in the 36th Division and became commander in 2008.⁴⁷ In 2009, he took command of the 30th Division of surface ships of the Black Sea Fleet. His activities between 2009 and 2012 are unknown due to limited sources from this time, during which he may have studied at a staff academy. Lipilin then became chief Institute for the Study of War 2022

of Forces in the North-East (an unclear position within the Pacific Fleet) in 2012. Lipilin then led a detachment of ships of the Pacific Fleet in the Russo-Chinese military exercises "Peace Mission-2014" and became the commander of the Forces in the North-East in 2014. Lipilin served as the deputy commander of the Black Sea Fleet from 2018 to 2021. Sergey Lipilin was appointed chief of staff of the Baltic Fleet on October 5, 2021.

Deputy Commander of the Baltic Fleet: Vice Admiral Sergei Stanislavovich Eliseev

Eliseev entered into military service after graduating from the Kaliningrad Naval School in 1983.⁴⁸ He served in various positions in the Pacific Fleet before joining the Ukrainian Navy in 1993.⁴⁹ He went on to attend the Ukrainian National Defense Academy in 2004 and was appointed first deputy commander of the Ukrainian Navy in 2010. During the 2014 Russian annexation of Crimea, Eliseev defected from the Ukrainian Navy and was appointed as deputy commander of the Russian Baltic Fleet in July 2014.⁵⁰

Southern Military District

District-level Officers

Commander of the Southern Military District: Army General Aleksandr Vladimirovich Dvornikov

Dvornikov entered military service in 1978 after graduating from the Ussuriysk Suvorov Military School.⁵¹ Following graduation, he served as platoon commander, company commander, and chief of staff of a battalion in the Far Eastern Military District throughout the 1980s.⁵² From 1991 to 1994, Dvornikov served as deputy commander, and eventually commander, of a motorized rifle battalion operating out of the Western Group of Forces in Germany. From 1995 to 2000, Dvornikov served as chief of staff and then commander of an unspecified motorized rifle regiment of the Moscow Military District. He then served as chief of staff and commander of another motorized rifle regiment in the North Caucasian Military District until 2003, during which time he likely participated in the Second Chechen War. From 2005 to 2008, Dvornikov served as deputy commander and then chief of staff of the 36th Army of the Siberian Military District. Dvornikov commanded the 5th Red Banner CAA of the Far Eastern Military District from 2008 to 2010. Dvornikov served as deputy commander of the EMD from 2010 to 2012, then as chief of staff of the CMD from April 2012 to 2015. Dvornikov served as the first commander of Russia's deployment to Syria from September 2015 to July 2016. He has commanded the SMD since September 20, 2016, and was awarded the rank of army general in 2020.⁵³ Dvornikov took overall command of Russian operations in Ukraine around April 8, 2022.⁵⁴

Chief of Staff of the Southern Military District: Colonel General Sergey Yurevich Kuzolyev

Kuzolyev began his career in 1990 after graduating from the Ryazan Higher Airborne Command School.⁵⁵ He moved up the ranks from platoon commander to battalion commander in various Airborne units in the 1990s and commanded an unspecified motorized rifle regiment after graduating from the Combined Arms Academy in 2001. Kuzolyev graduated from the General Staff Academy in 2010, after which he commended the 18th Motorized Rifle Brigade until 2012. He then served as chief of staff of the 58th CAAA from 2012 to 2014. Ukraine's GUR reported that Kuzolyev commanded the 2nd Army Corps (the armed forces of the Luhansk People's Republic) from fall 2014 to spring 2015, operating under the alias "Sergey Yuriyovuch Ihnatov." Kuzolyev then commanded the 20th Guards CAA from 2015 to 2016 and commanded the 58th CAA from 2016 to 2017. He became chief of staff of the SMD in 2019. Kuzolyev additionally commanded the Group of Russian Forces in Syria from November 2020 to February 2021.

Deputy Commander of the Southern Military District: Lieutenant General Alexey Yuryevich Avdeev

Avdeev began his career in unspecified command positions in the North Caucasus Military District from 1988 to 1996. He graduated from the Combined Arms Academy in 1999, fought in Chechnya while holding unspecified positions in the early 2000s, and graduated from the General Staff Academy in 2008. Avdeev then commanded an unspecified Motorized Rifle Division in the Siberian Military District from 2008 to 2010. He subsequently served as deputy chief of staff of the Siberian Military District from 2010 to 2011, deputy commander of the 41st CAA from 2011 to 2012, and chief of staff of the 6th CAA from 2012 to 2014. Avdeev served as Commander of the

29th CAA from 2014 to 2017 and Commander of the 1st Guards Tank Army from 2017 to 2018. Avdeev then became the head of Combined Arms Academy of the Russian Armed Forces between 2018 and 2019 before taking his current role as deputy commander of the SMD in 2019.⁶¹

Army-level Officers

58th Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 58th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Mikhail Stepanovich Zusko [POSSIBLY ARRESTED AS OF MARCH 31]

Zusko's career prior to 2007 is unknown, though he reportedly gained combat experience in the First Chechen War.⁶² He served as deputy commander of the 11th Separate Air Assault Brigade from 2007 to 2011 and Commander of the 34th Motorized Rifle Brigade of the 49th CAA from 2011 to 2014.⁶³ Ukraine's GUR reported that Zusko commanded the 1st Army Corps (the armed forces of the Donetsk People's Republic) for several months in 2014.⁶⁴ Zusko then served as Deputy Commander of the 49th CAA from 2015 to July 2019, when he took command of the army—a rare direct elevation from deputy commander to commander of the same CAA.⁶⁵ Zusko took command of the 58th CAA in August 2020.⁶⁶ Zusko was reportedly removed from his post and arrested due to combat losses in Ukraine as of March 31, 2022, but ISW is unable to independently verify this claim.⁶⁷

Chief of Staff of the 58th Combined Arms Army: Major General Vyacheslav Nikolaevich Gurov

Gurov served in the Second Chechen War from 1999 to 2000 and participated in fighting in Grozny, though his exact positions are unknown.⁶⁸ Gurov commanded the 6th Tank Brigade of the 20th Guards CAA from 2010 to 2012 and commanded the 74th Separate Guards Motorized Rifle Brigade from 2012 to 2017.⁶⁹ Gurov commanded the 90th Guards Tank Division for an unspecified period beginning in 2017. Gurov additionally served as commander of the Collective Peacekeeping Forces of the CSTO at least during the "Indestructible Brotherhood-2019" exercises in October 2019, though his total tenure in this role is unknown.⁷⁰ Gurov served as deputy commander of the 2nd Guards CAA from 2019 to 2021 before taking his current role as chief of staff of the 58th CAA in May 2021.⁷¹

Deputy Commander of the 58th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

49th Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 49th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Yakov Vladimirovich Rezantsev

[KIA IN UKRAINE MARCH 24]

Rezantsev entered military service in 1994 and moved from platoon to brigade commander in various unspecified motorized rifle units in the 1990s and early 2000s.⁷² He served as Commander of the 57th Separate Guards Motor Rifle Brigade from 2010-2011 and Commander of the 7th Military Base from 2011-2013, after which he was promoted to the rank of Major General. Rezantsev commanded the 20th Guards CAA from 2013 to 2016 and commanded the 41st CAA from 2018 to 2020.⁷³ Rezantsev reportedly served in the Russian deployment to Syria in an unspecified role.⁷⁴ Rezantsev took command of the 49th CAA in August 2020 and rose to the rank of Lieutenant General in 2021.⁷⁵ Ukrainian officials claimed that Ukrainian forces killed Rezantsev at the Chornobaivka aerodrome, Kherson Oblast, on March 24.⁷⁶

Chief of Staff of the 49th Combined Arms Army: Major General Valery Plohotnyuk

Plohotnyuk served as the 49th CAA's Chief of Staff during the joint Russian-Pakistani "Friendship-2021" military exercises in September-October 2021 and likely remains in this role.⁷⁷ We cannot verify any other details of his career.

Deputy Commander of the 49th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

8th Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 8th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Andrey Nikolayevich Mordichev

[CLAIMED KIA IN UKRAINE ON MARCH 18 BUT POSSIBLY ACTIVE AS OF MARCH 28]

Mordichev's career prior to 2010 is unknown.⁷⁸ Mordichev became Deputy Commander of the 5th Separate Motorized Rifle Brigade in 2010 and commanded the 4th Separate Tank Brigade of the WMD from 2011 to 2012. Mordichev served as the commander of the 28th Separate Motorized Rifle Brigade from 2012 to 2014 and likely attended the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff between 2014 and 2017. Mordichev briefly commanded the 68th Army Corps of the EMD in 2017 before becoming chief of staff of the 41st CAA until 2019. Mordichev served as the chief of staff of the 8th CAA beginning in 2020 before taking command in November 2021.⁷⁹ The Ukrainian GUR reported that Mordichev commanded Russian operations in Mariupol and ordered operations to create a humanitarian catastrophe in the city.⁸⁰ Ukrainian media reported that Ukrainian forces killed Mordichev on March 18, though he later appeared in an undated video with Chechen leader Ramzan Kadyrov on March 28.⁸¹ ISW cannot currently confirm his status.

Chief of Staff of the 8th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current chief of staff is not publicly available.

Deputy Commander of the 8th Combined Arms Army: Major General Vladimir Petrovich Frolov

[KIA IN UKRAINE ON UNSPECIFIED DATE BEFORE APRIL 16]

No biographical information is available online regarding Frolov's career and previous combat experience.⁸² Saint Petersburg Governor Alexander Beglov confirmed that Frolov died during the Russian invasion of Ukraine on an unspecified date and was buried with military honors on April 16, 2022.⁸³ Kremlin-sponsored media stated that the information about Frolov's death is highly confidential, and falsely claimed that he is the only high-profile commander to die in Ukraine since the start of the war.⁸⁴

22nd Army Corps

Commander of the 22nd Army Corps: Major General Arkady Marzoev

Marzoev began his military career in 1987 in the Black and Baltic Sea Fleets before enrolling in the Novosibirsk Higher Command School in 1988. We cannot confirm specific dates for the majority of Marzoev's career. Marzoev served with an unspecified GRU Spetsnaz unit in 1992, during which time he fought in the First Chechen War. Marzoev then commanded a company of the 45th Guards Special Purpose Brigade and a separate motorized rifle battalion of the 58th CAA and fought in Second Chechen War. Marzoev later graduated from the Combined Arms Academy and returned to Chechnya as chief of staff of an unspecified regiment. In August 2008, Marzoev commanded an unspecified motorized rifle regiment that deployed to South Ossetia. Marzoev then served as the chief of staff of a separate motorized rifle brigade in North Ossetia, deputy commander of an unspecified "combined group of forces" (possibly in the Russo-Georgian War), and finally deputy chief of staff of the 58th CAA. Marzoev then graduated from the General Staff Academy before commanding a motorized rifle division in the 58th CAA (likely the 42nd) and serving as deputy commander of the 49th CAA. Marzoev commanded the 138th Separate Motorized Rifle Brigade of the 6th CAA beginning in 2014 and participated in combat in Donetsk Oblast. Marzoev took command of the 22nd Army Corps in Crimea on November 1, 2021. 87

Chief of Staff of the 22nd Army Corps: Unknown

Information about the current chief of staff is not publicly available.

Deputy Commander of the 22nd Army Corps: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

Navy-level Officers

Russian Black Sea Fleet

Commander-in-Chief of the Black Sea Fleet: Admiral Igor Vladimirovich Osipov

[POSSIBLY ARRESTED AS OF APRIL 22]

Osipov began his career commanding a small anti-submarine ship in the Pacific Fleet after graduating from the Higher Naval Diving School (now the St. Petersburg Naval Institute) in 1995. 88 Osipov served as commander of an MPK-61 ship of the 11th Division of Surface Ships based in Vladivlastok from 1995 to 1998. From 2000 to 2001, he served as chief of staff of the 11th Division, and then as commander until September 2002. From 2004 to 2007, Osipov served as chief of staff of the 165th Brigade of Surface Ships and then commanded it from 2007 to 2011. He then graduated from the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff in 2012, after which he served as chief of staff of the Baltic Naval Base in Kaliningrad from 2012 to 2015. 89 Osipov then served as chief of staff of the Pacific Fleet from September 2016 to August 2018. Osipov served as the deputy chief of the Russian General Staff from August 2018 to May 2019 before accepting his current role as commander of the Russian Black Sea Fleet. 90 He was awarded the rank of admiral by presidential decree in 2021. 91 The Ukrainian GUR reported on April 22 that Osipov was removed from his position and arrested for the loss of the *Moskva*, though ISW cannot independently confirm this report. 92

Chief of Staff of the Black Sea Fleet: Vice Admiral Sergey Mihailovich Pinchuk

Pinchuk graduated from the Leningrad Nakhimov Naval School in 1988 and then attended the Black Sea Higher Naval School in Sevastopol. He served as an officer on the destroyer *Nastoychivy* from 1993 to 1999, rising from commander of an anti-aircraft missile battery, to commander of a surface missile battery, and finally to senior assistant to the commander of the ship. Pinchuk graduated from the Higher Special Officer Class of the Navy of 1999. His activities between 1999 and 2004 are unknown; he graduated from the Kuznetsova Naval Academy in 2004 before serving unspecified command positions at the Leningrad Military Base. From 2004 to 2010, Pinchuk commanded the 105th Brigade of the Baltic Fleet and commanded the Krondstadt garrison. He served as chief of staff of the Leningrad Naval Base of the Baltic Fleet from 2010 to 2011, commander of the Novorossiysk Naval Base of the Black Sea Fleet from 2011 to 2014, and lectured at the Russian Military Academy of the General Staff from 2014 to 2016. Pinchuk has unspecified combat experience in the Russian military operation in Syria. He commanded the Caspian Flotilla from 2016 to 2021 and became chief of staff of the Black Sea Fleet in October 2021. The Ukrainian GUR reported on April 22 that investigative actions were underway against Pinchuk, though ISW cannot independently confirm this report.

Deputy Commander of the Russian Black Sea Fleet: Captain of the First Rank Andrey Nikolayevich Paly

[KIA IN MARIUPOL MARCH 20]

Paly is a Ukrainian national who graduated from Kviv Higher Naval Political School in 1992,96 Paly refused to take a Ukrainian military oath in March 1993 and left for Russia's Pacific Fleet, where he served as a psychologist on the destroyer Fearless and later as the deputy commander for educational work of a combat communications unit.⁹⁷ From 1994 to 1999, Paly served on the rescue ship *Georgy Titov*, the heavy nuclear missile cruiser *Peter* the Great, and served as the deputy commander of the Belomorsk Naval Base.98 Paly then worked as a psychologist on the cruiser Kerch and deputy commander of the patrol ship Inquisitive.99 Paly became the Deputy Commander of the radio-technical unit on the large anti-submarine ship Ochakov in August 2004.¹⁰⁰ In May 2005, Paly was appointed deputy commander for educational work of the 11th Brigade of the Black Sea Fleet. Paly has served as the deputy commander for work with personnel on numerous Black Sea Fleet ships in the Mediterranean Sea since 2004 and participated in naval exercises as part of Zapad-2009, Vostok-2010, and the Russian-Italian exercise "IONEX-2011." Paly participated in the Russo-Georgian War in South Ossetia from August to September 2008. Paly headed the Black Sea Fleet Department for Work with Personnel from 2011 to 2014. He then served as the deputy head of the Admiral Nakhimov Higher Naval School in Sevastopol a position he held until accepting his most recent role as the Black Sea Fleet deputy commander in 2019.¹⁰² Paly notably acted as a liaison between the Black Sea Fleet and the so-called "Sevastopol self-defense" forces during the Russian annexation of Crimea in 2014, with his main task being to convince Ukrainian servicemen to violate

their oath and join the Russian Navy.¹⁰³ Several Kremlin media outlets confirmed on March 20 that Paly was killed by Ukrainian shelling in Mariupol.¹⁰⁴

Eastern Military District

District-level Officers

Commander of the Eastern Military District: Colonel General Aleksandr Yuryevich Chaiko

Chaiko began his military career after graduating from the Moscow Suvorov Military School in 1988.¹⁰⁵ He additionally attended the Moscow Higher Combined Arms Command School in 1992. From 1992 to 1999, he served as commander of a reconnaissance platoon, commander of a company, deputy commander of a battalion, and commander of a battalion in various units in the Western Group of Forces in Germany and Moscow Military District. After graduating from the Combined Arms Academy in 2001, he became Chief of Staff of a motorized rifle regiment in the Moscow Military District and then commanded a regiment of the 2nd Guards Motorized Rifle Division until 2005. In 2006, Chaiko commanded the 27th Separate Guards Motorized Rifle Sevastopol Brigade. Between 2007 and 2009, he commanded the 2nd Guards Motorized Rifle Division and in 2009 directed the 473rd District Training Center for Junior Specialists.

In 2012, Chaiko graduated from the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff, rose to the rank of major general, and became deputy commander of an unspecified army in the CMD.¹⁰⁶ Chaiko served as Chief of Staff of the 20th Guards CAA in 2013 and took command of the army in 2014. He remained in this position until 2017. Chaiko served as the first Chief of Staff of the Russian troops in Syria upon the initiation of Russian operations in Syria in 2015 and possibly into 2016. From 2017 to 2019, Chaiko served as Chief of Staff of the Russian Air Defense forces in Khabarovsk. Chaiko served as Deputy Chief of General Staff of the Russian Armed Forces from 2019 to November 2021 and returned to Syria to command the Russian deployment there from September 2019 to an unspecified date in 2020.¹⁰⁷ Putin awarded Chaiko with the rank of Colonel General in June of 2021.¹⁰⁸ Chaiko took command of the EMD on November 16, 2021.¹⁰⁹ Chaiko reportedly served in the 2022 Russian invasion of Ukraine, possibly as commander of the failed Russian drive on Kyiv (which was predominantly conducted by EMD forces) and was observed in Kyiv Oblast on March 23, 2022.¹¹⁰

Chief of Staff of the Eastern Military District: Lieutenant General Evgeny Valerivich Nikiforov

Nikiforov entered military service in 1987 after graduating from the Ussuriysk Suvorov Military School.¹¹¹ He then graduated from the Kolomna Higher Artillery Command School in 1991. According to Ukrainian Intelligence, Nikiforov served in various positions in the 83rd Separate Assault Brigade of the Far Eastern Military District from 1991 to 2002, including command of an unspecified artillery platoon and unspecified antitank battery.¹¹² After a likely education in a higher command academy, Nikiforov commanded the 83rd Brigade from 2005 to 2010. He likely then attended the General Staff Academy from 2010 to 2012 before serving as the Deputy Commander of the 58th Army from 2012 to 2014 and Chief of Staff of the 20th CAA from 2014 to 2016. Nikiforov then commanded the 20th CAA from 2016 to 2017 and the 58th CAA from 2017 to 2019. Nikiforov served as the Deputy Commander of the WMD from 2019 to 2020 before his appointment as Chief of Staff of the EMD in February 2020.¹¹³ Nikiforov gained combat experience in First and Second Chechen Wars and commanded the Russian Group of Forces in Syria from June 2021 to October 2021.¹¹⁴

Deputy Commander of the Eastern Military District: Lieutenant General Mikhail Yakovlevich Nosulev

Nosulev's early career is unknown from open sources. Nosulev served as Deputy Chief of Staff of the 58th CAA during the Russo-Georgian War in 2008. Nosulev commanded the 473rd Guards District Training Center, the 29th CAA of EMD, and became the Chief of Staff of the 49th CAA between 2010 and 2017. Nosulev took command of the 36th CAA in 2017. He has served as Deputy Commander of the EMD since January 2020.

Army-level Officers

5th Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 5th Combined Arms Army: Major General Alexei Vladimirovich Podilov

The majority of Podilov's military career has not been well-documented. He received his military education at the Chelyabinsk Higher Military Tank Command School, Combined Arms Academy of the Russian Armed Forces, and the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff on unspecified dates. Podilov served as the chief of staff of the 27th Separate Guards Motorized Rifle Brigade from 2008 to 2012, then commanded the 57th Separate Guards Motorized Rifle Brigade of the 5th CAA until 2014. Podilov served as Head of the 392nd District Training Center from 2016 to 2017 before becoming deputy commander of the 41st CAA from 2018 to 2019. Podilov briefly served as acting commander of the 41st CAA in 2019 until becoming chief of staff of the 41st CAA from 2019 to 2020. Podilov took command of the 5th CAA in January of 2021. He reportedly received combat experience in the Second Chechen War in an unknown unit.

Chief of Staff of the 5th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current chief of staff is not publicly available.

Deputy Commander of the 5th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

29th Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 29th Combined Arms Army: Major General Andrey Borisovich Kolesnikov [KIA IN UKRAINE MARCH 11]

Records on the majority of Kolesnikov's military service are limited. Kolesnikov previously commanded the 4th Tank Division from 2015 to 2018. He served as chief of staff of the 1st Guards Tank Army of the WMD from 2020 to 2021 and took command of the 29th CAA on December 7, 2021. Kolesnikov was reportedly killed in Ukraine on March 11. 126

Chief of Staff of the 29th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current chief of staff is not publicly available.

Deputy Commander of the 29th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

35th Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 35th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Alexander Semyonovich Sanchik

Records about the career of Lieutenant General Alexander Semyonovich Sanchik are limited. He graduated from the Tashkent Higher Tank Command School in 1989 and the Combined Arms Academy in 2000 and had a likely typical early career path in the SMD, though his exact positions cannot be confirmed. ¹²⁷ Sanchik commanded the 2nd Guards Motorized Rifle Division from 2014 to 2015, attended the General Staff Academy from 2015 to 2017, and served as deputy commander of the 58th CAA from 2017 to 2020. ¹²⁸ He became commander of the 35th CAA in 2020. ¹²⁹ Sanchik was reportedly seriously wounded in Ukraine on March 2, but ISW cannot confirm his current status. ¹³⁰

Chief of Staff of the 35th Combined Arms Army: Major General Sergey Ilyich Nyrkov

Nyrkov began his military career in 1988 and graduated from Frunze Higher Combined Arms Command School in 1992.¹³¹ Nyrkov served in a typical progression of positions as a platoon commander, company commander, battalion commander, and chief of staff of an unspecified regiment in the 201st Motorized Rifle Division until

December 2006.¹³² A Belarusian Telegram channel reported that Nyrkov was wounded in the stomach and arrived in a Gomel Oblast hospital on March 1 after combat in northern Ukraine.¹³³

Deputy Commander of the 35th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

36th Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 36th Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Valery Nikolayevich Solodchuk

Solodchuk commanded the 7th Guards Mountain Air Assault Division from 2012 to 2014.¹³⁴ The GUR reported that Solodchuk commanded the 1st Army Corps (the armed forces of the Donetsk People's Republic) from fall 2014 to spring 2015.¹³⁵ Solodchuk served as the Deputy Commander of the 5th CAA from 2015 to 2017 and Chief of Staff of the 36th CAA from 2017 to 2020 before taking command of the CAA in January 2020.¹³⁶ Solodchuk received combat experience in the First and Second Chechen Wars and operations in Dagestan.¹³⁷

Chief of Staff of the 36th Combined Arms Army: Major General Andrey Anatoliyevich Seritsky

Seritsky commanded the 212th District Training Center for Tank Troops of the Siberian Military District in Zabaykalskyi Krai during an unspecified time period. Seritsky took command of the 200th Motorized Rifle Brigade, part of the Northern Fleet, in 2015 after reportedly serving in Donbas in an unspecified role. Ukrainian media reported that Seritsky participated in a terrorist act against Mariupol residential districts on January 24, 2015. Seritsky also reportedly served in a Russian special military operation in Syria. Ukrainian outlets claimed that Seritsky was reportedly seriously wounded in Ukraine in March 2022 while serving as Chief of Staff of the 36th CAA.

Deputy Commander of the 36th Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

68th Army Corps

Commander of the 68th Army Corps: Lieutenant General Dmitry Valerievich Glushenkov

Records about Lieutenant General Dmitry Glushenkov's career are relatively limited. Glushenkov previously served as the Deputy Commander of the 35th CAA from 2015 to 2017 and commanded the 106th Guards Airborne Division from 2013 to 2015.¹⁴¹ Glushenkov took command of the 68th Army Corps in 2017.¹⁴² Glushenkov served in the peacekeeping mission in Yugoslavia and has combat experience from the Second Chechen War.¹⁴³

Chief of Staff of the 68th Army Corps: Major General Vladimir Anatoliyevich Belyavsky

Belyavsky graduated from Minsk Suvorov Military School in 1986 and graduated from the Kharkiv Guards Higher Tank Command School in 1990. He Belyavsky commanded a tank platoon in the 126th Coastal Defense Division of the Black Sea Fleet from 1990 to 1992 and commanded a reconnaissance platoon in the 810th Separate Marine Brigade starting in August 1992. In 1993, Belyavsky participated in an operation to rescue encircled Russian officers in Abkhazia while commanding this platoon. From March 1996 to 1999, Belyavsky served as the Chief of Staff of the 888th Separate Reconnaissance Battalion of the Black Sea Fleet. Belyeavsky graduated from the Combined Arms Academy in 2001, after which he commanded the 1200th Separate Reconnaissance Battalion in the 77th Guards Separate Marine Brigade until 2005. Belyavsky commanded an unspecified Naval Infantry unit in the Second Chechen War. Belyavsky then served as the Deputy Commander of the Baltic Fleet's 336th Naval Infantry Brigade, and from December 2009 to June 2014 commanded the 810th Separate Marine Brigade of the Black Sea Fleet. From 2014 to 2016, Belyavsky attended the General Staff Academy and from June 2016 to September 2017 commanded the 40th Separate Marine Brigade in the Pacific Fleet. Belyavsky took his current position as Chief of Staff of the 68th Army Corps in 2018.

Deputy Commander of the 68th Army Corps: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

Navy-level Officers

Pacific Fleet

Commander of the Pacific Fleet: Admiral Sergei Iosifovich Avakyants

Avakyants was born in the Armenian SSR to a naval family. 146 He graduated from the Black Sea Higher Naval Order of the Red Star School in 1980, after which he served in the Northern Fleet of the Soviet Navy. From 1980 to 1985, Avakyants served as commander of the control group of the anti-submarine ship *Admiral Yumashev*. In 1985, he took command of the anti-aircraft missile battalion of a missile cruiser. In 1991, he became commander of a cruiser as captain 3rd Rank. From 1996 to 2001, Avakyants rose through the ranks of the 43rd Division of Missile Ships of the Northern Fleet, beginning as deputy commander, then chief of staff, then commander. Between 2004 and 2007, he was chief of staff of the 7th Operational Squadron of surface ships of the Northern Fleet. He then moved to the Black Sea Fleet, where he served as chief of staff of the Novorossiysk Naval Base. At the end of 2007, he moved to the Pacific Fleet and took command of the Primorsky Flotilla until 2010. He served as chief of staff of the Pacific Fleet until May 3, 2012, when he was promoted to his current position as commander of the Pacific Fleet. 147 He rose to the rank of admiral in 2014. 148

Chief of Staff of the Pacific Fleet: Vice Admiral Sergey Grigoryevich Rekish

Rekish entered naval service after graduating from the Caspian Higher Naval School in Baku in 1988.¹⁴⁹ Information on the specifics of his career is relatively limited. Rekish served as crew commander of a nuclear submarine and commander of a submarine division of the Pacific Fleet at an unspecified time. He attended and graduated from the General Staff Academy and took charge of the Pacific Fleet submarine forces in 2016. He became commander of the submarine forces of the Northern Fleet in 2017.¹⁵⁰ He has served as chief of staff of the Pacific Fleet since August 16, 2018.¹⁵¹ Putin promoted Rekish to the rank of vice admiral in 2019.

Deputy Commander of the Pacific Fleet: Vice Admiral Denis Valentinovich Berezovsky

Berezovsky's naval career includes experience in the Ukrainian and Russian navies. From 2002 to 2005, he commanded the Ukrainian Naval Flagship *Sahaidachny*.¹⁵² By 2009, he was awarded the rank of captain and became a rear admiral in 2012.¹⁵³ He became commander of the Naval Forces of Ukraine in 2014.¹⁵⁴ However, a day after he became Commander, Berezovsky confirmed his allegiance to Crimea and was removed from his post by the Ukrainian Ministry of Defense.¹⁵⁵ He subsequently faced a criminal case on the grounds of high treason and was stripped of all Ukrainian military awards in 2018.¹⁵⁶ Berezovsky was appointed deputy commander of the Russian Black Sea Fleet by Defense Minister Shoigu on March 24, 2014.¹⁵⁷ He became deputy commander-in-chief of the Pacific Fleet in 2018.¹⁵⁸ He was awarded the rank of vice admiral in 2020.¹⁵⁹

Central Military District

District-level Officers

Commander of the Central Military District: Colonel General Aleksandr Pavlovich Lapin

Lapin began his military career when he was drafted into the Soviet Army Air Defense in 1982. ¹⁶⁰ He then went on to attend the Kazan Higher Tank Command School and graduated in 1988. After his graduation, he served as commander of a tank platoon, tank company, and battalion of the 26th Army Corps. He additionally served in the Leningrad Military District and Northern Fleet for an unspecified period in the 1990s. Lapin attended the Military Academy of the Armored Forces and graduated in 1997. After his graduation, Lapin served as commander of a tank battalion of the 58th CAA from 1997 to 1999. In 1999, he became chief of staff and then commander of the 429th Separate Motorized Rifle Regiment of the 19th Motorized Rifle Division, likely for a brief period. Lapin served as Chief of Staff of the 20th Guards Motor Rifle Division from 1999 to 2003 and commanded the 205th Separate Motorized Rifle Brigade from 2003 to 2006. Lapin then attended the General Staff Academy from 2006 to 2009 and became deputy commander of the 58th Army from 2009 to 2012. Lapin took command of the 20th Guards CAA from 2012 to 2014 and then served as chief of staff of the EMD from 2014 to 2017. He then served as chief of staff of the Russian Armed Forces in Syria from January 2017 to November 2017. ¹⁶¹ Lapin took his current position as commander of the CMD on November 22, 2017. Lapin returned to Syria to command the Russian deployment from October 2018 to January 2019. ¹⁶²

Chief of Staff of the Central Military District: Colonel General Mikhail Yuryevich Teplinskiy

Teplinskiy entered military service after graduating from the Ryazan Higher Airborne Command School in 1991. 163 Between 1991 and 1996, he commanded an airborne infantry platoon, reconnaissance platoon, and the reconnaissance company of the 137th Parachute Regiment of the 106th Airborne Division. He participated in operations in Transnistria in 1992 and in Chechnya from 1994 to 1995. He then went on to hold various command positions in the 234th Parachute Regiment of the 76th Airborne Division between 1999 and 2003, eventually rising to the rank of deputy commander in 2002 and chief of staff from 2003 to 2005. After likely attending the General Staff Academy or another military higher education institution from 2005 to 2007, Teplinskiy served as the head of the 212th Guards Training Center from 2007 to 2009 and was the chief of staff of the 20th Guards CAA from 2009 to 2013. Teplinsky's move from a career in the VDV to the Russian ground forces is unusual. Teplinsky then commanded the 36th CAA from 2013 to 2015. Ukraine's Main Intelligence Directorate reported that Teplinsky served as the chief of staff of the Territorial Troops in the SMD in 2015, the Russian command structure responsible for the military forces of the DNR and LNR. 164 Teplinsky then served as the chief of staff of the SMD from 2017 to 2019 and has served as chief of staff of the CMD since 2021. 165

Deputy Commander of the Central Military District: Lieutenant General Yevgeny Valentinovich Poplavsky

Records on Poplavsky's military career are relatively limited. Poplavsky received combat experience in the Soviet-Afghan War, First and Second Chechen Wars, and the Russian military operation in Syria. Poplavsky served as deputy chief of staff of the 29th CAA from 2010 to 2017. ¹⁶⁶ Poplavsky then commanded the 29th CAA from 2017 to 2018 before accepting his current position as deputy commander of the CMD in November 2018. ¹⁶⁷

Deputy Commander for Military-Political Work: Major General Rustam Sakhibnazarovich Minnekaev

Minnekayev's military career has not been well-documented in the open-source. He became deputy commander for military-political work of the CMD around 2020. Russian media sources indicated that Minnekayev was still deputy commander for military-political work up as of February 2022. On April 22, 2022, Russian media sources named Minnekaev as "deputy commander of the CMD" and widely quoted a briefing he gave on Russian objectives for the second stage of the invasion of Ukraine. It is unclear if Russian media was misreporting Minnekaev's role, or if he took over as overall deputy commander from Poplavsky. Regardless, we are including Minnekaev's bio due to the media attention his speech received.

Army-level Officers

2nd Guards Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 2nd Guards Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Andrei Vladimirovich Kolotovkin

Kolotovkin entered military service in 1990 after graduating from the St. Petersburg Higher All-Arms Command School.¹⁷¹ He took command of a motorized rifle platoon of the North Caucasian Military District in 1994 and held a likely standard progression of command and chief of staff positions for the next 20 years. He reportedly participated in Russian operations in Chechnya and Dagestan. Kolotovkin commanded the 8th Separate Guards Motorized Rifle Brigade from 2015 to 2016 and served as the deputy commander of the Black Sea Fleet Coastal Troops (the Russian ground forces stationed in Crimea) from 2016 to 2017. Kolotovkin commanded the 22nd Army Corps of the Black Sea Fleet from 2017 to 2018 and served as chief of staff of the 8th Guards CAA from 2018 to 2020. He has served as commander of the 2nd Guards CAA since 2020.

Chief of Staff of the 2nd Guards Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current chief of staff is not publicly available.

Deputy Commander of the 2nd Guards Combined Arms Army: Unknown

Information about the current deputy commander is not publicly available.

41st Combined Arms Army

Commander of the 41st Combined Arms Army: Lieutenant General Sergey Borisovich Ryzhkov

Ryzhkov entered military service in 1989 after graduating from the Leningrad Higher Combined Arms Command School.¹⁷² After graduation, he served in unspecified motorized rifle units in the 1990s before graduating from the Mikhail Frunze Combined Arms Academy in 1999. Specifics of his career in the 2000s are unverifiable, though he commanded an unspecified regiment during that time, took command of the 39th Motor Rifle Brigade in 2011, and graduated from the General Staff Academy in 2015. Ryzhkov served as deputy commander of the 29th CAA from 2015 to 2017.¹⁷³ Ryzhkov served as deputy commander of the 58th CAA from 2017 to 2019. He was promoted to commander of the 58th CAA in February 2019 and remained in that position until August 2020, when he became commander of the 41st CAA.¹⁷⁴ Ryzhkov has combat experience in the First and Second Chechen Wars and the Russian military operation in Syria.

Chief of Staff of the 41st Combined Arms Army: Major General Vitaly Petrovich Gerasimov [KIA IN UKRAINE MARCH 7]

Gerasimov (no relation to the chief of the General Staff) began his career in 1999 after graduating from the Kazan Tank Higher Command School.¹⁷⁵ In the 2000s, he served in a typical succession of roles in the North Caucasus, Far East, Southern, and Central military districts, moving from platoon commander to brigade chief of staff. He reportedly commanded the 15th Motor Rifle Brigade from October 2013 to September 2014 and participated in combat in Luhansk during this period. Gerasimov served as head of the Tactics Department of the Russian Combined Arms Academy from 2014 to 2017.¹⁷⁶ Gerasimov commanded the 90th Guards Tank Division from 2019 to 2020.¹⁷⁷ Gerasimov became chief of staff of the 41st CAA in 2020.¹⁷⁸ The Ukrainian General Staff reported on March 8 that the Ukrainian Armed Forces killed Gerasimov on March 7 during fighting near Kharkiv.¹⁷⁹

Deputy Commander of the 41st Combined Arms Army: Major General Andrey Alexandrovich Suhovetskiy

[KIA IN UKRAINE MARCH 3]

Suhovestskiy's career has not been well-documented. He commanded the 7th Airborne Assault Division from February 2019 to November 2021 before becoming deputy commander of the 41st CAA on November 19, 2021. Russian sources reported that Sukovestskiy was killed in combat in Ukraine on March 3. 181

Russian Airborne Forces (VDV)

Commander of the Russian Airborne Forces: Colonel-General Andrey Nikolaevich Serdyukov

Serdyukov entered military service in 1983 after graduating from the Ryazan Higher Airborne Command School.¹⁸² From 1983 to 1986, he served as commander of a reconnaissance platoon, deputy commander of an airborne company, and commander of an airborne company. 183 Between 1986 and 1990, Serdyukov served as chief of staff and eventually commander of a paratrooper battalion.¹⁸⁴ Serdyukov then went on to attend the Mikhail Frunze Military Academy from 1990 to 1993. In 1993, he served as the deputy commander of an unspecified parachute regiment, going on to become commander in 1995. Serdyukov served as deputy commander of the 76th Airborne Assault Division from 1998 to 2003 and served as deputy commander of the Brigade of Russian Peacekeeping Forces in Kosovo from 1999 to 2000 during this period. 186 Serdyukov became commander of the 138th Separate Guards Motorized Rifle Brigade in 2002 and then commander of the 106th Guards Airborne Division from 2004 to 2007. He attended the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff from 2007 to 2009. In 2009, Serdyukov became deputy commander of the Far Eastern Military District's 5th CAA. He took over as commander of the 5th CAA when it was transferred to the newly formed EMD in 2011. Serdyukov became deputy commander of the SMD in February 2013 before becoming chief of staff of the SMD in October 2013, where he served until 2015. 187 From 2015 to 2016, Serdyukov served as commander of the 12th Reserve Command (the Russian headquarters commanding the DNR and LNR's armed forces) until October of 2016, when he took over his current position as commander of the Russian Airborne Troops, Serdyukov additionally commanded the Russian deployment to Syria from April 2019 to September 2019.188

Chief of Staff of the Russian Airborne Forces: Colonel-General Evgeny Alekseevich Ustinov

Ustinov entered military service after graduating from the Ryazan Higher Airborne Command School in 1984. ¹⁸⁹ He served as deputy commander of an airborne battalion in Afghanistan from 1985 to 1987. ¹⁹⁰ His activities between 1987 and 1998 are unknown. Ustinov graduated from the Mikhail Frunze Military Academy in 1998 and the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff in 2005, holding various unspecified positions within the Airborne Forces between these dates. He went on to serve as deputy commander of the Leningrad Military District from 2009 to 2011 and commanded the 6th CAA from 2011 to 2013. Ustinov then served as deputy commander of the CMD from April 2013 to September 2016, and chief of staff of the CMD from 2016 to 2018. During this time, Ustinov served as chief of staff of the Russian group of forces in Syria from 2016 to 2017. He commanded the CMD from October 2018 to January 2019 and became chief of staff of the Russian Airborne Forces in May 2019.

Deputy Commander of the Russian Airborne Forces: Major General Anatoly Georgievich Kontsevoi

Kontsevoi entered military service after graduating from the Ryazan Higher Airborne Command School in 1989. After graduation, Kontsevoi commanded an airborne platoon in the Leningrad Military District, commanded an airborne company from 1992 to 1994, served as deputy commander of an airborne battalion in 1994, and commanded a paratrooper training battalion from 1994 to 1998. Kontsevoi then attended the Combined Arms Academy Forces until 2000. From 2000 to 2003, he served as chief of staff of the 45th Guards Spetsnaz Brigade of the Airborne Forces before commanding it from 2003 to 2006. He served as deputy commander of the Guards Airborne Division from 2006 to 2008 and deputy head of the Ryazan Higher Airborne Command School from 2008 to 2012. He became head of the Ryazan Command School in 2012 and held this position until 2017, when he began studies at the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff. After graduating, Kontsevoi was appointed deputy commander of the Russian Airborne Forces in 2019.

Russian Aerospace Forces

Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Army General Sergei Vladimirovich Surovikin

Surovikin entered military service after graduating from the Omsk Higher All Arms Command School in 1987.¹⁹² After graduation, Surovikin served in the Limited Contingent of Soviet Forces in Afghanistan.¹⁹³ He then commanded a motorized rifle platoon in the 2nd Guards Motorized Rifle Division and was stationed in Moscow until 1991. In 1991, Surovikin served as chief of staff and acting commander of the 1st Motorized Rifle Battalion of the 2nd Guards Motorized Rifle Division, in which capacity he was involved in the August Coup of 1991. Units under his command fought protesters and killed three civilians. Surovikin was arrested, but the Moscow Prosecutor's Office ultimately dropped the charges against him. He was then promoted on the direct order of President Boris Yeltsin.¹⁹⁴ After the August Coup and the investigation against him, Surovikin went on to attend the Mikhail Frunze Military Academy and graduated in 1995, after which he served in the 201st Gatchina Motorized Rifle Division in Tajikistan (now the 201st Military Base in Dushanbe). After serving with the 201st Motor Rifle Division, he went on to attend the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff and graduated in 2002. From 2002 to 2005, Surovikin commanded the 34th Motor Rifle Division and the 42nd Guards Motor Rifle Division in Chechnya, though the exact dates of his service with both units are unverifiable.

Surovikin then served as deputy commander, chief of staff, and commander of the 20th Guards Red Banner Combined Arms Army from 2005 to 2008. He then went on to head the Main Operational Directorate of the Russian Armed Forces from 2008 to 2010. In 2010, he served as chief of staff of the Volga-Urals Military District, which was reformed into the CMD in September of 2010. In 2011, Surovikin took command of the new Main Directorate of the Military Police of the Russian Defense Ministry, after which he became chief of staff of the EMD in 2012. In 2013, Surovikin was appointed commander of the Eastern Military District. Surovikin notably commanded the Russian military grouping in Syria in 2017. Surovikin took command of the Aerospace Forces on October 31, 2017, becoming the first Combined Arms commander to lead the air force. Surovikin was promoted to general of the Army in 2021 and is a possible successor to Chief of the General Staff Valery Gerasimov.

Chief of Staff of the Aerospace Forces: Lieutenant General Viktor Musavirovich Afzalov

Information regarding the specifics of Afzalov's career is not publicly available. Afzalov was reportedly chief of staff of the Aerospace Forces as of June 2020. 198

Deputy Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Colonel General Andrey Vyacheslavovich Yudin

Yudin entered military service after graduating from the Armavir Higher Military Aviation Pilot School in 1983. ¹⁹⁹ Between 1983 and 1989, Yudin served as a pilot, senior pilot, and flight commander in the Baltic Military District. Yudin then commanded an unspecified fighter aviation regiment of the Western Group of Forces and became deputy commander of the aviation squadron of the 16th Air Army in December 1989. His activities between 1989 and 1996 are unavailable in the open-source, but he graduated from the Yuri Gagarin Air Force Academy in 1996. ²⁰⁰ From 1996 to 2008, Yudin served as a squadron commander, deputy commander, and eventually commander of an unspecified fighter aviation regiment of the Far Eastern Military District, as well as a deputy commander and commander of a fighter aviation division of the Far Eastern Military District. From 2010 to 2011, he headed the Combat Training Directorate of the Air Force and went on to become deputy commander of the 3rd Air Force and Air Defense Command of the EMD from 2011 to 2012. He served as commander of the 4th Air Force and Air Defense Command of the SMD from 2012 to 2015 and was appointed deputy commander of the Aerospace Forces on August 1, 2015.

Deputy Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Commander of the Air Force: Lieutenant General Sergey Vladimirovich Dronov

Dronov entered military service after graduating from the Yeisk Higher Military Aviation Pilot School in 1983.²⁰¹ Until 1990, he served as a pilot in an unspecified fighter-bomber aviation regiment in the then-Belarusian Military District.²⁰² He entered the Yuri Gagarin Air Force Academy in 1990 and graduated in 1992. His activities up until 2007 are not available in the open-source. In 2007, he graduated from the Military Academy of the Russian General Staff and commanded the Ussuri Mixed Aviation Division of the Air Force and Air Defense in 2008. In 2009, he became deputy commander and then commander of the Red Banner Far Eastern Association of the Air Force and Air Defense. He was appointed deputy commander of the Aerospace Forces in 2015, after which he led the aviation group of Russian Aerospace Forces in Syria for an unspecified period. He rose to the rank of commander of the Air Force in 2019.

Deputy Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Commander of the Air and Missile Defense Forces: Lieutenant General Andrey Gennadievich Demin

Demin began his military career after graduating from the Yaroslavl Military School of Air Defense in 1986.²⁰³ Demin held various engineering positions at the Kapustin Yar training ground in Astrakhan Oblast from 1986 to 1989 and held unspecified command roles in the 1st Special Purpose Air Defense Army until 1994. From 1994 to 1997, Demin commanded the 411th anti-aircraft missile battalion equipped with S-300V air defense systems. Demin then graduated from Zhukov Air and Space Defense Academy in 1999, after which he commanded the 614th Guards Anti-Aircraft Missile Regiment from 2000 to 2002. Demin served as the head of Anti-Aircraft Missile Forces of the Air Defense Corps from 2002 to 2004, deputy head of the Combat Training Directorate of the Air Force from 2004 to 2009, and commander of the 1st Aerospace Defense Brigade from 2009 to 2011; he graduated from the General Staff Academy in 2009. Demin later served as chief of staff from 2011 to 2013 and then commander from 2013 to 2015 of the Air and Missile Defense Command.²⁰⁴ Demin commanded the 1st Special Purpose Air and Missile Defense Army from 2015 to 2021 and accepted his current role as the deputy commander of the Aerospace Forces in 2021.²⁰⁵

Deputy Commander of the Aerospace Forces: Commander of the Space Forces: Colonel General Aleksandr Valentinovich Golovko

Golovko started his military service after graduating from the Kharkiv Air Force National University in 1986.²⁰⁶ Between 1986 to 1998, Golovko served as a department engineer, station chief, company commander, and department head at the Titov Main Test and Space Systems Control Centre in Kranoznamensk, Moscow Oblast. Golovko graduated from the Military Academy for Strategic Rocket Forces in 1992 and was promoted to head a separate command complex at the Titov Centre from 1998 to 2001. Golovko then attended the Military Academy

of the Russian General Staff from 2001 to 2003. Golovko served as the deputy chief of staff of the Space Forces between 2003 and 2004 before returning to the Titov Center as deputy chief of staff in 2003. He became chief of staff at the Titov Center in 2004 and became the Center's head in 2007, where he remained until 2011. Golovko served as the head of the First State Test Cosmodrome from June 2011 until Putin appointed him as the commander of the Russian Aerospace Defense Forces on December 24, 2012.207 Putin then appointed Golovko as commander of the Space Forces on August 1, 2015.208



ISW CELEBRATES 15 YEARS

Centered on Leadership and Intelligence Analysis Focused on Securing America











```
https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/gerasimov-valeriy-vasilevich?utm_source=google.com&utm_medium=organic&utm_campaign=google.com&utm_referrer=google.com
http://old dot redstar.ru/2001/03/12_03/a_t21.html
http://old dot redstar.ru/2001/03/12_03/a_t21.html
https://www.bbc.com/news/world-europe-20270111.
https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/9/99/Russian_Ground_Forces_-_North_Caucasus_Military_District_Structure.png
https://rus dot team/people/bogdanovskij-nikolaj-vasilevich
https://ria dot ru/20121224/916044193.html
https://ria dot ru/20121224/916044193.html
https://rus dot team/people/bogdanovskij-nikolaj-vasilevich
```

11 https://eng.agromassidayu.dot.com/general-rudskoj-sergej-fedorovich-biografiya-dostizheniya-glavnie-sobitiya-a-

- 146723; https://warheroes dot ru/hero/hero.asp?Hero_id=29742
- $^{12}\,\underline{\text{https://rus}}\,\text{dot team/people/rudskoj-sergej-fedorovich;}\,\underline{\text{https://bmpd}}\,\text{dot livejournal.com/4143743.html}$
- ¹³ https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/salyukov-oleg-leonidovich
- 14 https://rus dot team/people/tonkoshkurov-vasilij-petrovich

10 https://rus dot team/people/bogdanovskij-nikolaj-vasilevich

- 15 https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/matovnikov-aleksandr-anatolevich
- ¹⁶ https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/zhuravlev-aleksandr-aleksandrovich
- 17 https://warheroes dot ru/hero/hero.asp?Hero_id=23321
- 18 https://centrasia dot org/person2.php?&st=1137142469
- 19 www.kremlin dot ru/acts/news/11673
- ²⁰ https://ria dot ru/20140121/990457074.html#14261629984403
- ²¹ https://www.kommersant dot ru/doc/2762335
- ²² https://gur dot gov.ua/en/content/heneral-maior-zs-rf-zavizion-oleksii-volodymyrovych.html
- ²³ https://www.dot.kommersant.ru/doc/3486877#id=11
- ²⁴ http://www dot assembly.spb.ru/article/633200002/145871/V-BKZ-Oktyabrskiy-sostoyalsya-koncert-posvyaschennyy-Dnyu-zaschitnika-Otechestva; https://47channel dot ru/event/ucastvovat-v-parade-pobedy-smogut-tolko-boicy-vakcinirovavsiesya-ili-perebolevsie-covid-19; https://news dot rambler.ru/troops/46379439-kak-sankt-peterburg-vstretil-den-pobedy/; https://rus dot team/people/kochetkov-vladimir-anatolevich
- ²⁵ https://georgmuseum dot minobr63.ru/?p=103; old.redstar dot ru/2007/08/01_08/4_03.html
- ²⁶ http://old dot redstar.ru/2009/08/08 08/1 07.html
- ²⁷ https://www dot tulapressa.ru/2011/12/vladimir-shamanov-pozdravil-polkovnika-kochetkova-s-naznacheniem-komandirom-tulskoj-divizii-vdv/">https://www dot tulapressa.ru/2011/12/vladimir-shamanov-pozdravil-polkovnika-kochetkova-s-naznacheniem-komandirom-tulskoj-divizii-vdv/
- ²⁸ https://www dot arms-expo.ru/news/vooruzhennye-sily/vladimir-kochetkov-trenazhyer-stupenka-k-parashyutu-/
- ²⁹ https://rus dot team/people/kisel-sergey-aleksandrovich
- 30 https://regnum dot ru/news/1672975.html
- 31 https://tass dot ru/armiya-i-opk/5151082
- ³² <u>https://apostrophe</u> dot ua/news/world/ex-ussr/2022-03-26/za-proval-spetsoperatsii-v-rossii-uvolili-ocherednogo-generala-iz-za-voynyi-v-ukraine/263887; <u>https://gur</u> dot gov.ua/content/kysel-serhei-aleksandrovych.html
- 33 ковровскиевести dot pф/20723-zhizn-voennaya.html; https://ulpressa dot ru/2009/07/04/article87152/
- ³⁴ https://news dot rambler.ru/army/47706960-v-gvardeyskuyu-tankovuyu-armiyu-zapadnogo-voennogo-okruga-naznachen-novyy-nachalnik-shtaba/
- 35 https://rus dot team/people/ershov-vladislav-nikolaevich
- 36 https://rus dot team/people/ershov-vladislav-nikolaevich
- 37 https://47news dot ru/articles/152410/
- 38 https://twitter.com/Biz Ukraine Mag/status/1506252669979136012;

https://www.facebook.com/DefenceIntelligenceofUkraine/posts/296873329290761

- ³⁹ https://rus dot team/people/ivanaev-andrej-sergeevich
- 40 http://www dot chvtku.ru/?pid=2441
- ⁴¹ https://topgun.rin dot ru/news/58146/Novym-nachal-nikom-shtaba-gvardejskoj-Krasnoznamennoj-obschevojskovoj-armii-ZVO-naznachen-gvardii-polkovnik-Andrej-Pjataev.html; https://myrotvorets dot news/viiskovi-zlochyntsi-yaki-zdiisniuiut-zb/
- ⁴² https://news.rambler dot ru/army/47828837-nachalniku-shtaba-gvardeyskoy-obschevoyskovoy-armii-zvo-gvardii-polkovniku-andreyu-pyataevu-vrucheno-ocherednoe-voinskoe-zvanie-general-mayor/
- 43 https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/liina-viktor-nikolaevich

- 44 https://www.dot.dialog.ua/war/173270_1551903133
- 45 https://www.dot.dialog.ua/war/173270_1551903133
- 46 https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/lipilin-sergey-vladimirovich
- 47 https://rus dot team/people/lipilin-sergej-vladimirovich
- 48 https://web.archive.org/web/20150807185130/http%3A//ria.ru/defense_safety/20140715/1016043976.html
- 49 https://agro-archive dot ru/stati/26810-eliseev-sergey-stanislavovich.html
- 50 https://ria dot ru/20140715/1016043976.html
- 51 https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/dvornikov-aleksandr-vladimirovich
- 52 www.svu dot ru/biographies/biography/24.html
- 53 publication.pravo.gov dot ru/Document/View/0001202006230049; https://iz dot ru/news/633414
- 54 https://understandingwar.org/backgrounder/russian-offensive-campaign-assessment-april-11
- 55 https://tass dot ru/armiya-i-opk/6136609
- 56 https://gur dot gov.ua/en/content/heneral-maior-zs-rf-kuzovliev-serhii-iuriiovych.html
- 57 http://viperson dot ru/people/kuzovlev-sergey-yurievich
- 58 https://tass dot ru/armiya-i-opk/6136609
- 59 http://syria dot mil.ru/war-on-terror/info/news/more.htm?id=12342666@egNews
- 60 http://www.dot.svu.ru/biographies/biography/173.html
- 61 https://tass dot ru/mezhdunarodnaya-panorama/13905587
- 62 https://gur.gov dot ua/content/heneral-maior-zs-rf-zus-ko-mykhailo-stepanovych.html
- 63 https://gur.gov dot ua/content/heneral-maior-zs-rf-zus-ko-mykhailo-stepanovych.html
- 64 https://gur dot gov.ua/content/heneral-maior-zs-rf-zus-ko-mykhailo-stepanovych.html
- 65 https://nachfin dot info/SMF/index.php?PHPSESSID=4da6da24080984e8fb2a16cc1e7821a0&topic=31251.0
- 66 https://structure dot mil.ru/management/details.htm?id=12212106@SD_Employee
- 67 https://news.liga dot net/politics/news/ranen-ubit-uvolen-arestovan-armiya-rf-lishilas-top-komandirov-spisok-ot-genshtaba-vsu; https://www.ua-football dot com/ukrainian/news/1648712295-sudba-predatelya-rossiyane-arestovali-generala-iz-volyni-provalivshego-nastuplenie-na-voznesensk.html; https://glavcom.ua/ru/news/u-kogo-iz-rossiyskih-generalov-poleteli-golovy-iz-za-provala-specoperacii-spisok-834500.html
- 68 https://nn dot aif.ru/society/persona/105318
- 69 https://sudact dot ru/regular/doc/x1nyXGol4eNK/
- 70 https://jscsto dot org/news/4237/
- 71 https://function dot mil.ru/news_page/country/more.htm?id=12361372@egNews
- ⁷² https://news.rambler dot ru/troops/41330983-rukovodyaschemu-sostavu-tsvo-predstavlen-novyy-komanduyuschiy-41-y-obschevoyskovoy-armiey/
- 73 https://news dot mail.ru/politics/35394173/
- $^{74}\ https://news\ dot\ rambler.ru/troops/41330983-rukovodyaschemu-sostavu-tsvo-predstavlen-novyy-komanduyuschiy-41-y-obschevoyskovoy-armiey/$
- 75 https://regnum.dot.ru/news/3085160.html?utm_source=yxnews&utm_medium=desktop
- ⁷⁶ https://www.unian dot net/war/unichtozhen-v-chernobaevke-vsu-likvidirovali-eshche-odnogo-rossiyskogo-generala-arestovich-novosti-vtorzheniya-rossii-na-ukrainu-
- 11759224.html?utm source=telegram&utm medium=social&utm campaign=unian channel;

https://www.bbc.com/news/world-europe-60807538

- 77 http://redstar dot ru/obshhij-put-k-boevomu-masterstvu/
- 78 https://gur dot gov.ua/content/mordvychev-andrei-nykolaevych.html
- ⁷⁹ https://novochvedomosti dot ru/obshhestvo/v-novocherkasske-otmetili-den-junarmejca/; http://publication dot pravo.gov.ru/File/GetFile/0001202112080041?type=pdf; http://www.dot.don-kazak.ru/news/torzhestvennoe-obeshchanie-kadeta/
- ${}^{80}\ \underline{\text{https://podrobnosti}}\ dot\ ua/2442931\text{-vsu-likvidirovali-na-aerodrome-v-chernobaevke-general-lejtenanta-armii-rf.html;}\\ \underline{\text{https://gur}}\ dot\ gov.ua/content/mordvychev-andrei-nykolaevych.html}$
- ⁸¹ http://www.niknews.mk dot ua/2022/03/18/likvidirovan-komandujuschij-8-j-armiej-okkupantov-general-lejtenant-mordvichev/; https://podrobnosti dot ua/2442931-vsu-likvidirovali-na-aerodrome-v-chernobaevke-general-lejtenanta-armii-rf.html; https://theins dot ru/news/249409; https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_HslxkjhxFs.
- 82 https://govoritmoskva dot ru/news/313270/
- 83 https://govoritmoskva dot ru/news/313270/; https://twitter.com/just_whatever/status/1515338108639842312; https://twitter.com/yarotrof/status/1515343018471006212; https://twitter.com/yarotrof/status/1515343018471006212; https://wwwdot gov.spb.ru/press/governor/235716/
- 84 https://spb dot tsargrad.tv/news/kak-pogib-general-major-vladimir-frolov-iz-peterburga-otdal-zhizn-za-russkih_531678
- 85 https://archive.dot.ph/lVbbs#selection-1957.1-1940.11; http://sevosetia.dot.ru/Article/Index/496678

```
86 https://informnapalm.dot.org/en/soldiers-russian-138th-separate-motorized-rifle-brigade-deployed-air-defense-
systems-donbas/; https://vk dot com/wall-72749677_77775?lang=en; https://myrotyorets dot center/criminal/marzoev-
arkadij-vasilevich/
87 https://www.facebook.com/DefenceIntelligenceofUkraine/posts/296873329290761
88 https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/osipov-igor-vladimirovich
89 https://tass.dot.ru/encyclopedia/person/osipov-igor-vladimirovich
90 https://tass.dot.ru/encyclopedia/person/osipov-igor-vladimirovich
91 www.kremlin dot ru/acts/bank/46850
92 https://www.facebook.com/DefenceIntelligenceofUkraine/posts/296873329290761
93 https://www.militarynews dot ru/story.asp?rid=4&nid=279883&lang=RU
94 eurasian-defence dot ru/?q=node/28460; https://www.dot.peoplelife.ru/226745
95 https://www.facebook.com/DefenceIntelligenceofUkraine/posts/296873329290761
96 https://www.dot.kommersant.ru/doc/5270162; https://tsn.dot.ua/ru/ato/vsu-likvidirovali-zamestitelya-
komanduyuschego-chernomorskim-flotom-rf-2014195.html
97 https://c-pravda dot ru/news/2022-03-23/nastovashhiji-komissa
98 https://morpolit.dot.ru/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/%D0%97%D0%B0%D0%B4%D0%B0%D1%87%D0%B8-
%D0%BE%D1%81%D1%82%D0%B0%D1%8E%D1%82%D1%81%D1%8F-
%Do%BF%Do%B5%D1%80%Do%B5%Do%B6%Do%BD%Do%B8%Do%BC%Do%B8.pdf
99 https://www.dot.mk.ru/politics/2022/03/21/pogibshiy-pod-mariupolem-zamkomanduvushhego-chernomorskim-
flotom-paliy-byl-komendantom-groznogo.html
100 https://c-prayda dot.ru/news/2022-03-23/nastovashhiji-komissa
101 https://myrotvorets.center/criminal/palij-andrej-nikolaevich/
102 https://myrotyorets.center/criminal/palij-andrej-nikolaevich/; https://www.mk dot
ru/politics/2022/03/21/pogibshiy-pod-mariupolem-zamkomanduyushhego-chernomorskim-flotom-paliy-byl-
komendantom-groznogo.html
103 https://ru.krymr.com/a/rossiya-ukraina-voyna-krym-sanktsii-ubitiye-rossiyskiy-voyenniye/31766357.html
104 https://t dot me/ekaterinaaltabaeva/93;
105 https://tass.dot.ru/encyclopedia/person/chayko-aleksandr-vurevich
106 https://mega-stars dot ru/politics/chajko_aleksandr_yurevich.php
107 https://www.rbc dot ru/society/13/11/2019/5dcbf0829a79474c814a4842
108 prezident dot org/articles/ukaz-prezidenta-rf-355-ot-11-iyunja-2021-goda-11-06-2021.html
109 www.debri-dv dot ru/article/29469/novyy_komanduyushchiy_voyskami_vvo_prinyal_dela
110 https://twitter.com/RALee85/status/1506956474546851854; https://t dot.me/milinfolive/79446
111 https://ussvu dot ru/people/our-pride/nikiforov-evgeniy-valerevich/
112 https://gur.gov dot ua/content/viiskovvi-zlochynets-heneral-maior-zs-rf-br-nikiforov-ievhen-valeriiovych.html
113 https://www.dot.dvnovosti.ru/khab/2020/03/10/111590/
114 https://function.dot.mil.ru/news_page/person/more.htm?id=12368097@egNews; https://www.rbc.dot
ru/society/22/06/2021/60d1ca969a7947cce96494d
115 https://rus dot team/people/nosulev-mikhail-yakovlevich
116 https://rus dot team/people/nosulev-mikhail-yakovlevich
117 https://function dot mil.ru/news_page/country/more.htm?id=12146115@egNews&_print=true
118 https://ulpravda dot ru/rubrics/soc/ulianovsk-sdelal-iz-nego-tankista
119 ursa-tm dot ru/forum/index.php?/topic/377845-novyy-komanduyuschiy-vozglavil-primorskuyu-obschevoyskovuyu-
120 https://prim dot news/2021/01/28/novyj-komanduyushhij-vozglavil-primorskuyu-obshhevojskovuyu-armiyu/
121 http://veteran-129-div dot ru/komandovanie.html; https://docplayer dot com/27467665-Gazeta-tihookeanskogo-
krasnoznamyonnogo-ordena-kutuzova-ii-stepeni-okruzhnogo-uchebnogo-centra-vostochnogo-voennogo-okruga.html
122 http://nskmi dot ru/parish/news/4726/
123 https://vladnews.dot.ru/ev/vl/4788/128846/armii smena
124 https://mil dot.ru/army2021/news/more.htm?id=12340888@egNews
125 https://www.militarvnews.dot.ru/storv.asp?rid=1&nid=533796&lang=RU; https://zab.dot.ru/news/146484;
https://tass.dot.ru/obschestvo/13117717
126 https://twitter.com/ArmedForcesUkr/status/1502294425992585225; https://interfax.dot
com.ua/news/general/811473.html
https://www.militarynews dot ru/story.asp?rid=1&nid=539163&lang=RU
128 vladimir-pelevin.blogspot dot com/2020/10/35.html
```

129 publication.pravo dot gov dot ru/Document/View/0001202202170028

130 https://twitter.com/MrKovalenko/status/1499097560128049154?s=20&t=hzuaBppIt5VXevmrnv2FSw

```
131 https://belsat dot eu/ru/news/02-03-2022-belye-halaty-general-major-rf-sergej-nyrkov-perenes-operatsiyu-v-
gomelskom-rnpts/
http://www.dot.omvoku.su/memory/1992/nirkov_ss/o.htm
133 https://t dot me/belhalat by/6567; https://t dot me/belhalat by/6565; https://belsat dot eu/ru/news/02-03-2022-
belye-halaty-general-major-rf-sergej-nyrkov-perenes-operatsiyu-v-gomelskom-rnpts/
134 http://sdrvdv.dot.ru/news/v-vozdushno-desantnyx-vojskax-novoe-naznachenie/
135 https://gur dot gov.ua/content/heneral-maior-zs-rf-solodchuk-valerii-mykolaiovych.html
<sup>136</sup> https://gur dot gov.ua/content/heneral-major-zs-rf-solodchuk-valerij-mykolajovych.html; http://redstar dot
ru/zasluzhili-pravo-byt-liderami/
137 https://gur dot gov.ua/content/heneral-maior-zs-rf-solodchuk-valerii-mykolaiovych.html
138 https://www.stopfake.org/ru/godovshhina-obstrela-mariupolya-kto-rukovodil-teraktom-i-chto-izvestno-o-nih-v-
2010/
139 https://www.dot.dialog.ua/war/170271 1548333790
140 https://glavcom.dot.ua/ru/news/u-kogo-iz-rossiyskih-generalov-poleteli-golovy-iz-za-provala-specoperacii-spisok-
834500.html; https://charter97 dot org/be/news/2022/3/31/461496/
141 https://rus dot team/people/glushenkov-dmitrij-valerevich
142 https://sakhalin dot info/news/127495
143 https://twitter.com/warsmonitoring/status/866305062821404674/photo/2
144 https://mnsvu dot org/vypuskniki/znamenitye/vladimir-belyavskij-stal-generalom/
145 https://warheroes.dot.ru/hero/hero.asp?Hero_id=6987
146 https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/avakyanc-sergey-iosifovich
147 https://ria dot ru/20120503/640154848.html
148 publication.pravo.gov dot ru/Document/View/0001201412160015?filtercode=daily
149 https://rus dot team/people/rekish-sergej-grigorevich
150 https://severpost.dot.ru/read/62514/severpost.ru/read/62514/
151 https://www.dv.kp dot ru/online/news/3208908/
152 https://www.blackseanews.dot.net/read/38292/
https://archive_dot is/20140303053959/www.mil.gov.ua/index.php?lang=ru&part=news&sub=read&id=26734
154 https://web.archive.org/web/20140606035823/http://www.president.gov.ua/documents/16578.html
155 https://tass dot ru/mezhdunarodnaya-panorama/1015853
156 https://kontrakty dot ua/article/74784
157 function.mil dot ru/news_page/country/more.htm?id=11911637
158 https://pravo dot ru/news/237163/
159 kremlin dot ru/acts/bank/45211
160 https://tass dot ru/encyclopedia/person/lapin-aleksandr-paylovich
https://www.understandingwar.org/sites/default/files/The%20Russian%20Military%E2%80%99s%20Lessons%20Learn
ed%20in%20Syria_0.pdf
https://www.understandingwar.org/sites/default/files/The%20Russian%20Military%E2%80%99s%20Lessons%20Learn
ed%20in%20Syria 0.pdf
163 https://gur dot gov.ua/content/vyshchyi-komandnyi-sklad-zbroinykh-syl-rosii-osobysto-vidpovidalnyi-za-vedennia-
boiovykh-dii-na-terytorii-ukrainy-heneral-leitenant-teplyns-kyi-mykhailo-iuriiovych.html
164 https://gur dot gov.ua/content/vyshchvi-komandnyi-sklad-zbroinykh-syl-rosii-osobysto-vidpovidalnyi-za-vedennia-
boiovykh-dii-na-terytorii-ukrainy-heneral-leitenant-teplyns-kyi-mykhailo-iuriiovych.html; https://zn.dot
ua/ukr/UKRAINE/viynoyu-v-donbasi-keruyut-zastupnik-nachalnika-genshtabu-rf-i-nachshtabu-teritorialnih-viysk-yuvo-
rozvidka-192245 .html
165 http://function dot mil.ru/news_page/country/more.htm?id=12114615@egNews;
https://www.kommersant.ru/doc/5118546
166 https://www.dot.kp.ru/online/news/810518/
167 https://structure dot mil.ru/structure/okruga/south/news/more.htm?id=12203942@egNews;
168 http://iktn dot ru/society/zamestitel-komanduyushhego-voyskami-tsvo-general-mayor-rustam-minnekaev-
proinspektiroval-soedineniya-i-voinskie-chasti-v-sibiri; https://mil вще
ru/russian peacekeeping forces/news/more.htm?id=12332498@egNews; https://www.dot.interfax.ru/russia/794169
169 redstar dot ru/v-gotovnosti-k-operativnomu-razvyortyvaniyu/; https://r-19 dot ru/news/ekonomika/125551/
170 https://tass dot ru/armiva-i-opk/14446141?
171 https://rus dot team/people/kolotovkin-andrey-vladimirovich
```

```
172 https://www.dot.militarynews.ru/story.asp?rid=1&nid=502253&lang=RU
173 http://kremlin dot ru/acts/news/10032
174 https://structure dot mil.ru/management/details.htm?id=12311952@SD Employee; https://www.dot
militarvnews.ru/storv.asp?rid=1&nid=502253&lang=RU
175 http://redstar dot.ru/diviziya-gotova-k-aktivnym-dejstviyam/; https://rus.dot.team/people/gerasimov-vitalij-
petrovich
176 https://function.mil dot.ru/news_page/country/more.htm?id=12242622@egNews
177 https://function.mil dot ru/news_page/country/more.htm?id=12242622@egNews; http://redstar.dot.ru/diviziva-
gotova-k-aktivnym-dejstvivam/.
<sup>178</sup> https://myrotvorets dor center/criminal/gerasimov-vitalij-petrovich/; https://www.cnn.com/europe/live-
news/ukraine-russia-putin-news-03-08-22/h_7665baeb59a63d9842f027f7f263fdf5;
https://www.facebook.com/GeneralStaff.ua/posts/267245612255191
180 https://novorab dot.ru/2021/11/19/u-novorossijskih-desantnikov-novyj-komandir/; https://desantura.dot
ru/news/88228/
181 https://lenta dot ru/news/2022/03/03/general_sukhovetskiy/;
https://web.archive.org/web/20220303155832/https://english.pravda.ru/news/world/150554-russian_general/.
182 https://www.kommersant dot ru/doc/5156140
183 https://warheroes.dot.ru/hero/hero.asp?Hero_id=29743
184 https://ria dot ru/20220304/serdyukov-1776020470.html
185 https://gur.gov.dot.ua/content/serdiukov-andrei-nykolaevych.html
186 https://gur.gov.dot.ua/content/serdiukov-andrei-nykolaevych.html
187 https://warheroes.dot.ru/hero/hero.asp?Hero_id=29743
https://www.understandingwar.org/sites/default/files/The%20Russian%20Military%E2%80%99s%20Lessons%20Learn
ed%20in%20Syria o.pdf
189 https://tass dot ru/armiya-i-
opk/6423223?utm source=ru.wikipedia.org&utm medium=referral&utm campaign=ru.wikipedia.org&utm referrer=r
u.wikipedia.org
190 https://rus dot team/people/ustinov-evgenij-alekseevich
191 www.rvvdku-vi dot ru/novosti/pozdravlenie-s-50-letnim-vubileem-konczevogo-anatoliya-georgievicha!
192 https://dic.academic dot ru/dic.nsf/ruwiki/1625787
193 https://tass dot
ru/info/4767615?utm source=ru.wikipedia.org&utm medium=referral&utm campaign=ru.wikipedia.org&utm referrer
=ru.wikipedia.org
194 https://www.mk dot ru/editions/daily/2011/03/29/576651-professiya-sluzhit-rodine.html
195 https://ria dot ru/20170609/1496221440.html
196 http://redstar dot ru/index.php/component/k2/item/35235-shtandarty-v-nadjozhnykh-rukakh
197 https://tass dot ru/armiya-i-opk/12142507
198 https://function.mil dot ru/news page/country/more.htm?id=12295481@egNews
199 https://rus dot team/people/yudin-andrej-vyacheslavovich
200 https://www.peoplelife dot ru/339650
201 https://www.peoplelife dot ru/98332
```

ru/people/demin-andrey-gennadievich

²⁰⁵ https://cyberleninka dot ru/article/n/andrey-demin-nashi-svyazi-nerazryvny-i-ne-vremenny-oni-navsegda

²⁰³ https://ief-usfeu dot ru/en/demin-andrei-gennadevich-komanduyushchii-gordost-akademii--/; http://viperson dot

206 http://eurasian-defence dot ru/?q=node/6474

²⁰⁷ https://rus dot team/people/golovko-aleksandr-valentinovich

202 https://rus dot team/people/dronov-sergej-vladimirovich

²⁰⁸ https://eadaily dot com/ru/news/2022/04/11/v-voenno-kosmicheskoy-akademii-rossii-smenili-nachalnika